2003

Lundahl v. Lundahl : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

Jurisdiction

Solley V. Solley (1964) 227 cAL.aPP.2D 522, 529 [38cr802] 731

Leeds v. Superior Court (1965) 231 Cal. App. 2d, 723, 724 731

Farmland Irrigation v. Dopplmaier (1957) 48 Cal 2d 208, 215 731

UIFSA (Utah) in force 1996

78-45f-201 Basis for jurisdiction 746

78-45f-202 Procedure for proceedings in another state 747

78-45f-204 Simultaneous proceedings in another state 747

78-45f-205 Continuing exclusive jurisdiction 747

78-45f-207 Recognition of controlling child support order 747

78-45f-303 Proceedings under chapter 747

78-45f-307 Duties of support enforcement agency 748

78-45f-313 Costs and Fees 748

MARLENE TELFORD (LUNDAHL)
4139 NORTH DEVONSHIRE CIRCLE
PROVO, UTAH 84604

In Pro se

UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

In re Marriage of:

GERALD D. LUNDAHL, M.D
Plaintiff and Appellee,

vs.

RUTH M. TELFORD (LUNDAHL)
Respondent, Appellant

CASE NUMBER 20030800-CA

OPENING BRIEF

Fourth Judicial District Court

Case No 784449259

Judge Claudia Laycock

Introduction

RUTH M. TELFORD (LUNDAHL) declare:

I am the Respondent in the above referenced matter and am personally familiar with all of the facts stated herein below. If called to testify as to these facts, I could and would do so competently of my own firsthand knowledge.

I would like to preempt my declaration with a statement about the Plaintiff. He and I were married for 25 years and had 12 children together. The Appellee was a benevolent husband and a kind father, always responding to the needs of those whom he loved. I fought vigorously to keep the marriage together and literally begged him to stay with the family. The Plaintiff's decision to divorce me was in a like manner "divorcing his own children., while knowingly denying them the daily contact and supervision of a father. This ordeal not only came as a shock but served to be very traumatic for all of us. Our journey has been long, difficult and painful. My children don't know who to believe, me or their father since our "stories" often contradict each other. I was in so much pain that I didn't realize that my children were also equally afflicted. As a result our children have

1 bonded together as shown by their behavior. They are true "survivors." Moreover,
2 most of my children have provided a welcome fortress of emotional support for
3 me. The Plaintiff's affair with a married woman who became his second wife
4 caused irreparable damage not only to the family but to the Plaintiff himself. The
5 man I was once married to--who at one time exemplified integrity, courage and
6 kindness is not the same person today. It seems as though his five marriages
7 have driven him in a downward spiral which has changed his character
8 substantially to the extent that he's almost a "stranger"

9 I do not take satisfaction in "taking" the Plaintiff's money which has
10 become an obsession with him, but I see no other option. My health has
11 deteriorated to the point that I no longer have the mobility I once had and I have
12 become disabled; this was in large part due to my internalizing the divorce
13 causing severe depression, esophageal spasm's and now I have Spinosus of the
14 spine and related problems. I feel it is his responsibility to provide for me as he
15 promised he would when we were going through the divorce "stating that he
16 would *never* drop my income below \$2000 per month even after the children were
17 raised." This promise along with his insistence that I move out of the state of
18 California with our children, so I wouldn't be involved in his "new life" was a
19 promise that I have come to depend on.

20 2. The real issue before the Appellate Court is the primary issue of which
21 venue controls in the issue of jurisdiction pertaining to the matter of support for
22 the Respondent by the Plaintiff. The Respondent's focus will be to provide
23 evidence, fact and law that should convince the court that Utah jurisdiction is and
24 *has been the proper venue for the last 27 years* since the dissolution of the
25 marriage in 1977. The Respondent moved to Utah from California with eight of
26 her 12 children within two weeks after the divorce was final. Two of the older
27 children were on missions for the LDS church and two were away at college.
28 The Respondent will proceed to show that the Plaintiff **voluntarily and**

1 **deliberately** acquiesced to the Utah jurisdiction filing and responding to motions
2 supplemented with affidavits, memorandum, petitions to modify, etc for the last
3 26 years .See schedule of Utah Orders

4 3. (see **R.A. 511-512 Vol, 1) (R.A. 120-128, Vol, 11)**

- 5 1. -----June, 1979
- 6 2. April 28, 1980
- 7 3. Stipulation-June 30, 1980
- 8 4. July 7, 1980
- 9 5. 1980
- 10 6. Ruling August 4, 1981
- 11 7. Nov., 27, 1981
- 12 8. July 14, 1983
- 13 9. 1983
- 14 10. April 24, 1984
- 15 11. Stipulation November 30, 1984
- 16 12. April 24, 1991
- 17 13. Aug., 26, 1991
- 18 14. March 10 1993
- 19 15. July 28, 1994
- 20 16. April 13, 1995
- 21 17. April 28, 1999

22 Also it might be well to indicate additional activity as *representative* of actions
23 in the Utah Court, with both the Plaintiff and Respondent appearing and represented by
24 Counsel (**R.A. 515-538, Vol, 1)**

- | | | |
|---|--------------------------|------|
| 25 1) Affidavit, Respondent | December, 18 | 1990 |
| 26 2) Petition to Modify, Respondent | January, 4 th | 1991 |
| 27 3) Order to Show Cause | January 23, | 1991 |
| 28 4) Petition to Modify, Plaintiff | February 5 th | 1991 |
| 1 5) Order on Order to show cause | April 24 th | 1991 |
| 2 6) Affidavit, Respondent | July, 19 th | 1991 |
| 3 7) Order to show Cause | August 20 th | 1991 |
| 4 8) Order & Judgement | August 25, | 1991 |
| 5 9) Petition to Modify, Plaintiff | April 7 th | 1992 |
| 6 10) Affidavit, Respondent | January 8, | 1993 |
| 7 11) Notice of Conference Settlement | January 26, | 1993 |
| 8 12) Judgement | March 3, | 1993 |
| 9 13) Pre-Trial Order | March 10, | 1993 |
| 10 14) Order , Sanction of Plaintiff | July 28, | 1994 |
| 11 15) Memorandum of Law | September 2 | 1994 |
| 12 16) Final Pre-trial | December 1, | 1994 |
| 13 17) Plaintiff withdrawal of Counsel | January 3 rd | 1995 |
| 14 18) Hearing | January 27, | 1995 |
| 15 19) Order | April 3 rd | 1995 |
| 16 20 Affdiavit, Respondent | | 1998 |

4. The Discretion of the Trial Court in this type of matter is very broad, the Court sitting as a Court in Equity, to make re-distribution or other modifications of the original Decree as equity might dictate. In Despain v. Despain, 610 P2d 1303, et. 1305, the Court stated as follows:

Under Utah Law, a Divorce Court sits as a Court in Equity so far as child custody, support payments and the like are concerned. It likewise retains *continuing jurisdiction* over the parties, and power to make equitable re-distribution or other modifications of the original Decree as equity might dictate. In both the formulation of the original Decree and any modifications thereof, the Trial Court is vested with broad discretionary powers, which may be disturbed by an Appellate Court only in the *presence of clear abuse thereof*.

5.. In early 1995 I wrote the California Attorney General asking for the assistance of the Attorney General's Office in collecting against Utah Orders. It wasn't more than a week later when the California AG office sent a memo to the Orange County District Attorney's Office, Department of child support requesting collection of the Utah Orders.

-1-

California Attorney General's conclusion (R.A 182-185, Vol, 11) p.2, last line
"Therefore, it appears to be established that Utah has continuing, exclusive jurisdiction". (Emphasis)

6. It was after a meeting with the Orange County child support officers that the Plaintiff made the decision to file a motion with the Orange County Superior Court requesting a hearing regarding the registration of the Utah Orders, citing jurisdiction and the Doctrine of Laches as his argument. (**R.A. 1-23, Vol, 11**) He failed.

7. The Orange County Superior Court ruled in favor of the Defendant after hearing both arguments and **reading** the pleadings of both parties. After considerable deliberation the trial court ruled that both Utah and California have

1 concurrent jurisdiction, allowing the Utah support Orders to be registered, lifting
2 all stays against them. (R.A. B24-B26, Vol, 11) It was at this point that the
3 Plaintiff decided to file an appeal in the Appellate Court, Fourth District, Division
4 Three, the State of California.

5 8. In the current litigation before the Appellate Court, Fourth District,
6 Division Three, State of California the Plaintiff is attempting to go back to a past
7 ruling of the 1997 appellate Court, where the Appellant,(Respondent) Marlene
8 Telford (Lundahl) attempted to have a 1994 Order set aside from a previous
9 California ruling on the basis she was denied the opportunity to appear before the
10 California Court. The issue of jurisdiction was not before the Appellate Court.

11 See Opinion dated **August 26, 1997 (R.A. 656-661, Vol, 1)**. Whereas the
12 Plaintiff asserts that the California Appellate Court in its Opinion of 1997 states
13 that "California has exclusive Jurisdiction over Spousal Support" which is not
14 accurate. The Honorable Commissioner Julee Robinson, of the the Superior
15 Court of Orange County, California who heard the current case reprimanded
16 Counsel for Plaintiff 's suggesting she read the California Opinion again. (See
17 Transcript of Court Proceedings (**R.A. 32-53): 35,36, Vol, 11**

18 The Court: I just have one question, I believe it's directed to you Ms.
19 Garland in some of the argument that you put forward you cited in
20 the original----and this may be wrong but I thought were you citing
21 the original decision that had been made by our court, Fourth District
Court of Appeal, which was Exhibit "G" which was filed on August
26th, 1997 for the authority that the court found that there was
exclusive jurisdiction.

22 I read that Opinion thoroughly and I didn't find any such dicta
23 regarding one court or the other *having exclusive jurisdiction*.

24 If anything, in footnote one on page four there was some discussion
25 that Jurisdiction was not an issue before the Court of Appeals. On
that appeal jurisdiction was not the issue. He stated, Quote, "so we
have jurisdiction all over the Place"

26 I'm not sure that Jurisdiction is the issue as much as it is the fact that
27 she was essentially deprived of her right to be present at that hearing
28 because of some comments that were made to her about what she
did and didn't have to do.

1 So, the only reference I find in that Court, our own court of Appeals
2 Decision, was basically saying it would be by virtue of dicta. It's not
3 essential to the holding that there was some representation at the
4 Hearing.

5 Anyway, that jurisdiction was not an issue, that there was jurisdiction
6 all over the place and that Mrs. Lundahl's Counsel, at least, seems
7 to feel there was concurrent jurisdiction at that time. Do you note
8 that as well?

9 Also in the court transcript (R.A.37, Vol , 11) the Plaintiff's Counsel declares the
10 following:

11 The enforcement is occurring now and I believe that under the
12 circumstances that it's appropriate to follow UIFSA and conclude *that*
13 *the 1994 California Order is the controlling order* because it could not
14 be superceded by the 1995 Order.. . .

15 . . . Unless she [Defendant] advised the court that as to the issue of
16 retroactivity that the Utah Court had made UIFSA retroactive to the
17 cases that have been filed before it was enacted and I think it would
18 be very interesting that if this were occurring in Utah, where Mrs
19 Lundahl lives she could not enforce this registration of these orders
20 in that state because UIFSA, would be the controlling venue and the
21 *California order would not be the controlling order.*

22 Regarding the above dicta the previous Utah Orders were valid under URESA.
23 UIFSA was not ratified by the Utah legislature until April 6, 1996 and not until
24 January 1, 1998 by the state of California. *Utah support orders were honored by*
25 *the Riverside County ORS under URESA.* Therefore, the additional support
26 Arrearage, of \$3500, \$29,200, \$61, 100, \$62, 991 all fall under the federal
27 statutes of URESA.

28 9) California Dissolution order filed in Utah by Plaintiff as part of
Utah Decree

However, the *California Dissolution Order* was submitted and filed in
Utah by the Plaintiff when he and his Utah Counsel Mr. Wooton appeared
before the Utah Court in 1978 where the Plaintiff acquiesced to Utah
Jurisdiction by submitting a complaint along with the registration in Utah of
the California 1977 Dissolution Order requesting that the Utah Court act as
the controlling venue. (R.A. 54-68, Vol ,11) Along with a Complaint (R.A. 69-

1 **Vol, 11)** lines 18-26. *Note the upper right corner of page one, where the*
2 *dissolution document has been stamped by the Utah Court. This document is*
3 *certified by the Utah Court.*

4 The Plaintiff is entitled to a Judgment and Decree of this Court
5 incorporating the provisions of the Judgement and *Decree of the*
6 *Superior Court of the State of California* and to have said Judgment
and Decree *incorporated into* and made a part of a Decree of this
[Utah]Court

7 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for a judgement and Decree of this
8 court incorporating the provisions of the Decree of the Superior Court
of the State of California in and for the County of Los Angeles in
Case No SE D336650 **(R.A. 70, (5, Vol,11)**

9
10 Also the Plaintiff states in 1983:

11 On May 17, 1977, Petitioner filed a Complaint in the Fourth District Court of
12 Utah County, State of Utah, case number: 499259 for the purpose of
establishing the California judgment. **(R.A 54-58, Vol, 11)** item (6)-

13 -3-

14 10. The Defendant's argument is that Utah has taken jurisdiction of both the
15 Defendant and the Appellee in divorce matters since 1978, See Utah Court
16 Docket **(R.A. 72-86, Vol, 11)**

17 11) In the Respondents SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM (R.A.
18 **Attachment A, B,C,)** the Respondent makes reference to the argument that the
19 *Utah Courts* previously ruled that the Utah court has both personal and SUBJECT
20 MATTER JURISDICTION (see **R.A. 559, and R.A. 560-563, Vol 1, 87, lines 21-**
21 **22 Vol 11)**, the court and the counsel of both parties had a discussion on the
22 subject of *Utah jurisdiction* and on-going alimony. In pertinent part

23 Findings

24 "The Court finds that this Court has continuing
jurisdiction of the subject matter and of the Plaintiff."

25 **(560-563, Vol 1)**

26 The Plaintiff has appeared personally, hired Utah Counsel to represent him
27 and many times has been the moving party. See SCHEDULE OF VARIOUS
28 UTAH PLEADINGS-PLAINTIFF **(R.A. 71- 72, Vol,11)**

1 8. The Plaintiff's first Utah Counsel was Noelle Wooton, followed by Robert
2 Moody, Donald Jensen, Richard Allred, Dana Burroughs, Sean Egan, Esq and
3 David Drake. These parties represented the Plaintiff in his many Utah motions the
4 Plaintiff has filed and responded to in the Utah jurisdiction.

5 -4

6 **Jurisdiction vs jurisdiction**

7 9) The primary issue is whether the California Order of 2002 along with the
8 long list of Utah orders (17) **(R.A. 120-128 , Vol, 11)** are valid. See also the
9 1995 and 1998 Utah orders summarizing arrearage that the Plaintiff owes the
10 Defendant). **(R.A. Attachment "E")**

11 -5-

12 **Plaintiff's insistence on Utah jurisdiction.**

13 10. There is a long history of motions that have been filed by the Plaintiff
14 in the Utah courts. The Plaintiff's purpose in submitting to and *even requesting*
15 *the jurisdiction of the Utah courts* was based on the courts' reputation for being
16 conservative in its judgements and rulings, See Vol 11, R.A. 188-196. Plaintiff's
17 **declaration of his wanting Utah jurisdiction). See Loose copy R.A. 127-199**

18 ~~Vol 11~~ *attachment*

19 The Plaintiff declares:

20 I have voluntarily traveled all of the way to Utah for the purpose of
21 submitting *myself to the jurisdiction of the State of Utah . . .*

22 "Respondent is till presently a resident of the State of Utah and I
23 have indicated in previous declarations and or pleadings that I would
be willing to submit myself to the Utah Courts"

24 Equally important the Plaintiff asserts:

25 11. In a motion filed by the Plaintiff in the Superior Court of the State of
26 California, for the County of Los Angeles, December 18, 1986, the Plaintiff
27 proceeds to establish facts demonstrating that California does not have
28 jurisdiction to hear matters regarding issues of divorce by the parties, through

1 chronologically submitting numerous dates where the parties filed motions and
2 appeared in the State of Utah. (R.A. 188-196 Vol, 11)

3 1. THIS COURT [California] MUST DISMISS
4 RESPONDENT'S ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE TO
5 MODIFY A UTAH ORDER ON THE GROUNDS THAT
6 THE RESPONDENT HAS FAILED TO ESTABLISH
7 THE UTAH ORDER AS A FOREIGN JUDGMENT IN
8 THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

9 In the case of Hamilton v. Superior Court, (1974) 37 Cal. App.3d 418, the
10 court declared that, "a foreign decree can be enforced in this state only by action."
11 As such, the Court in Hamilton was merely applying well established statutory
12 law. California Code of Civil Procedure Sec 1913 states:

13 "The effect of a judicial record of a sister state. . . can
14 only be enforced here by an action or a special
15 proceeding."

16 In the case of Leverett v. Superior Court: (1963) 222 Cal.App.2d 126, the
17 Court
18 declared, in pertinent part,

19 "It is now the settled law and policy of California that
20 foreign—created alimony and support obligations, as
21 well as child custody awards, unless established as a
22 foreign judgment in this state not be both enforced and
23 modified in the California forum" (emphasis)

24 The Leverett Court also cited with approval the decision in Worthly v.
25 Worthley, (1955) 44 Cal.2d 465, explains that foreign domestic judgment or
26 Decree once that foreign Decree has been *established* as a Judgment in this
27 Sate.

28 Markey: California Family law, Sec 51.06 [1] relying on Hamilton and CCP
Sec 1913, declares:

"The support and custody provisions in a foreign
judgment or decree may not be modified by the courts of
this state until the foreign judgment is first established
as a California judgment. This may be done by filing a
civil action or special proceeding to establish the foreign
judgment as a California judgment. (Emphasis)

2. THIS COURT MUST DISMISS PLAINTIFF'S

1 ASSERTION THAT ONLY CALIFORNIA HAS
2 EXCLUSIVE CONTINUING JURISDICTION, ON THE
3 GROUND THAT THE CALIFORNIA COURT LACKS
4 SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION

5 In the case of Sharove v. Middleman, (1956) 146 Cal.App.2d 199, 201-202,
6 the Court made it clear that a foreign court has the jurisdiction to determine
7 matters of child support if “the Court obtains personal jurisdiction over the paying
8 spouse and that THE STATE is the state of the Child’s domicile, residence or
9 presence.”

10 As a matter of fact:

11 12. The Plaintiff has appeared before the Utah Court on numerous
12 occasions as both the moving and responding party. As a result of one such
13 appearance, on **July 14, 1983**, (In response to Respondent’s motion to modify
14 support) the Fourth Judicial District Court, of Utah County, Provo, Utah made a
15 support order which has continued in full force and effect until the present time.
16 Since the Plaintiff has subjected himself to the jurisdiction of the State of Utah,
17 and since the Respondent and all of the minor children lived in the state of Utah,
18 it was declared that the State of Utah had continuing jurisdiction to decide all
19 issues regarding support of former spouse and children of the marriage.

20 In addition, in the recent case of Daves V. Daves, (1985) 173 CA 3d 97, the
21 parties obtained their divorce decree in the State of Oklahoma. Shortly
22 thereafter, mother moved to the State of California and both parties entered into a
23 written stipulation to establish the Oklahoma Decree in California. Husband later
24 filed an action in Oklahoma which was subsequently dismissed on the grounds
25 that husband had submitted himself to the jurisdiction of California when he
26 executed the Stipulation to establish the Oklahoma Decree in California.

27 “. . . Benjamin entered into a stipulation in which he asked that the
28 Oklahoma judgment of divorce be entered as a California judgment and
29 that the judgment be modified as to its visitation provisions” id. 106.

The Plaintiff in the current matter falls under this directive when he

1 registered the California Dissolution Order in the state of Utah, as a Utah Order
2 requesting Utah be the venue of jurisdiction.

3 13. Historically, both the Plaintiff and the Respondent entered into a
4 number of stipulations in the Utah court. The Plaintiff also appeared in Utah to
5 have his deposition taken. The Utah Courts have repeatedly asserted personal
6 jurisdiction over support and over the Appellee himself, who is domiciled in
7 California but who has willingly submitted himself to the jurisdiction of the State of
8 Utah. Since the three of the Support orders pertains to "family" support a reading
9 of Civil Code Section 5152 is necessary:

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