2003

# Gerald D. Lundahl v. Ruth M. Lundahl : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

devoid of Marlene claiming that the Judgment was obtained by fraud or lack of jurisdiction or lack of due process in the rendering state. Such allegations appear nowhere in her two petitions to modify the California Judgment. (R. 30-31, 198-201, 577-580.)

8. Apparently, when Marlene did not get what she wanted from the Fourth District Court, she expressed her total disdain for the court and showed no desire to comply with the order as is evident from her letter to Gerald. (R. 25-26.)

9. After Gerald attempted to enforce the Judgment and upon the advice of counsel, on June 30, 1980, he (in addition to his counsel, Marlene, and Marlene's counsel) entered into a stipulation attempting to modify the Judgment in a Utah court. This attempt resulted in alimony being assessed Gerald in the amount of \$1.00 per year. (R. 62.)

10. Since the entry of the Judgment, the jurisdiction of the California Superior Court was not meritoriously challenged by Marlene. She personally appeared, and at one time was represented by several California attorneys. (R. 715-722)

11. After Marlene moved to Utah, a "bi-state filing war" commenced, fought in California and Utah. Marlene submitted herself to California jurisdiction in this "filing war". (R. 728, 720-729)

12. It appears that Marlene was judge and court-shopping, that when a court in one state ruled against her, she would go to the court in another state. Consequently, inconsistent judgments were obtained. (R. 725-729)

13. At least three orders were issued by the Fourth District Court purporting to modify the spousal support award in the California decree. (R. 126-127 [1983 order], 221-



223 [April 24, 1991 order], R. 473-476 [April 13, 1995 order].) These orders substantially modified the amount of support decreed by the California court. The first order did not affect alimony. (R. 126-127.) The second Fourth District Court modification order modified the \$600 alimony award of the California Judgment, increasing "temporary family support for the support of the plaintiff and minor children of the parties . . . ." to \$3,000 per month. (R. 221, 221-223.) The third order increased Gerald's alimony obligation to \$2,235 per month. (R. 473-476.) None of these Utah modification orders even mentions the California courts, California jurisdiction, California orders in existence, or that Utah is specifically modifying the California support order(s). (R. 126-127 [1983 order], 221-223 [April 24, 1991 order], R. 473-476 [April 13, 1995 order].)

14. At the same time, Marlene submitted herself to the jurisdiction of the originating decree state – California Superior Court in various attempts to modify spousal support during the same or similar periods she was doing the same in the Fourth District Court of the State of Utah. The California Superior Court entered several orders modifying Gerald's spousal support and custody of the minor children. (R. 209-214, 305-310, 715-720 [August 24, 1987 order], 547-548 [November 16, 1994 order], 721-722 [March 3, 1989], and 723-724 [May 5, 1993]. The order of August 24, 1987 modified the alimony award in the Judgment to \$1,000 per month. (R. 718.) The order of November 16, 1994 modified the alimony award to \$500 per month. (R. 548.) During the time period of 1987 through 1994, the California Superior Court entered orders modifying Gerald's alimony obligation. The other two orders dealt with Marlene being dispossessed of custody of her two youngest

children. (R. 721-722, 723-724.)

15. On November 5, 1992, in order to obtain an Order to Show Cause, Marlene is accused by Gerald of conspiring with the process server to have Gerald served at 55 East 1230 North, Provo, Utah, as his residence. (R. 612) Since prior to the entry of the Judgment, Gerald has not resided in Utah. (R. 599.) The Order to Show Cause was heard without the presence of Gerald, all in violation of his 14<sup>th</sup> Amendment rights. (R. 599-613.)

16. Evidently, on or about January 19, 1993, Marlene again mislead the Fourth District Court into believing that Gerald was residing at 415 Bearcat Drive, Salt Lake City, Utah in order to serve him with another Order to Show Cause. (R. 608.) According to Gerald, this false service and misrepresentation that he was a resident of Utah influenced the trial court's decision that it had continuing and concurrent jurisdiction because of his Utah address and residence. (R. 605.)

17. The action brought by Gerald to enforce his rights of visitation occurred while the parties had minor children. (R. 2-4.) With the entry of the May 5, 1993 California Order, Marlene lost custody of her last and youngest child to Gerald. (R 723-724, 11) Consequently, California became the home state for the child custody (since Gerald was a continuing resident there) aspect of the originating decree. The California court, in its May 5, 1993 order specifically stated in ¶ 1: "The court finds that California has jurisdiction." (R. 724.) This loss of Utah home state concerning child custody occurred prior to Judge Guy Burningham's April 13, 1995 Modification Order. (R. 473-476.)

18. The Record is devoid of evidence that the parties entered into an express

written consent to divest California of its jurisdiction. This never occurred. California always has been and is the decree state with continuing jurisdiction. California has always retained continuing jurisdiction over the issue of alimony (as well as child support). (R. 724, 723-724, 24, 10-24.)

19. Respondent has always had rights and remedies in the California dissolution court. However, rather than avail herself of these California remedies, she has engaged in forum shopping in an attempt to find a sympathetic court and obtain a favorable result, something she did not receive in the latest modification action in California. (R. 724, 723-724, 24, 10-24, 725-729, and the whole record.)

20. During 1997, respondent filed an appeal with the California Court of Appeals challenging whether the California Superior Court had the jurisdiction to enter a reduction of spousal support order (spousal support was reduced to \$500). The California Court of Appeals reaffirmed that the court issuing the decree of divorce and the dissolution judgment, "maintained jurisdiction over the parties and spousal support. Indeed, Ruth *participated in spousal support hearings in California after the judgment* was entered and *prior to August 1994.*" [Emphasis in the original.] The California Court of Appeals correctly referred to the filings of the parties in California and Utah as a "bi-state filing war". (R. 725-729.)

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

The trial court properly granted Gerald's Motion to Strike Marlene's Order to Show Cause, finding that the Fourth District Court lacked the jurisdiction to modify the Judgment granting Marlene's petitions to modify the Judgment's spousal support award. In the

Judgment, the California Superior Court retained jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter and, over the years, continued to exercise it. Throughout all of the proceedings in the Fourth District Court, Gerald always remained a resident of California. Under these circumstances, the Fourth District Court lacked the subject matter jurisdiction to modify the California Judgment when it was domesticated by Gerald in Utah for enforcement purposes only. If Marlene wished to modify the Judgment, she should have applied to the California court to do so. Rather, she judge and forum shopped. In Utah, a court may only modify a spousal support order issued by another state if the Utah court has "continuing, exclusive jurisdiction over the spousal support order". Consequently, any spousal support modification orders entered by the Fourth District Court are void for lack of subject matter jurisdiction and cannot be enforced.

Additionally, it appears Marlene failed to comply with Rule 3(d), 9(c), and 24(a), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. As such, her brief should be stricken and the judgment of the trial court affirmed. She also attempted to unlawfully place documents into the record of the Fourth District Court after Judge Laycock's ruling was entered. These documents should also be stricken. This will be the subject of Gerald's Motion to Strike the Appellant Brief and Affirm the Trial Court's decision.

## **ARGUMENT**

### **I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY GRANTED GERALD'S MOTION TO STRIKE MARLENE'S ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE ON THE GROUNDS THAT THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT HAD NO SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION TO MODIFY THE**

## CALIFORNIA JUDGMENT ON APRIL 13, 1995

As can be ascertained from Marlene's brief, she appears to be claiming that the trial court erred in granting Gerald's Motion to Strike her Order to Show Cause. However, Utah case law is contrary to that position. The trial court decision should be affirmed. In *State of Utah Dept. of Human Services v. Jacoby*, 1999 UT App 52; 975 P.2d 939, the Court of Appeals decided the very issue present in the instant case and is directly on point. The issue there concerned a Virginia spousal support order attempted to be modified by a Utah court. The *Jacoby* Court stated:

In Utah, *a court may only modify a spousal support order issued by another state if the Utah court has 'continuing, exclusive jurisdiction over the spousal support order.* Utah Code Ann. § 78-45f-206(2). The method by which a Utah court obtains 'continuing exclusive jurisdiction' over a spouse support order is by 'issuing a support order consistent with the law of this state . . . .' *Id.* § 78-45f-205(6). Thus, *a Utah court cannot obtain 'continuing exclusive jurisdiction' unless it issues the spousal support order.* In this case, a Virginia court issued the spousal support order and therefore, the order could not be modified by the court in Utah. Accordingly, we affirm the trial court's decision on this issue. [Emphasis added.]

In the instant case, California originally issued the spousal support order. (R. 10-23.) Accordingly, the Fourth District Court could not modify the California spousal support order as it attempted to do prior to September 22, 2003. (R. 1037-1045, 221-223, 473-476.)

An analysis of § 78-45f-205 is clear that the Fourth District Court lacked the jurisdiction to hear the pending Order to Show Cause and lacked the jurisdiction to modify the California decree; consequently, the 1983 Order (R. 126-127), the April 24, 1991 Order (R. 221-223), and the April 13, 1995 Order (R. 473-476) are all void due to lack of subject

matter jurisdiction. Utah Code Ann. § 78-45f-205(6) states that "[a] tribunal of this state may not modify a spousal support order issued by a tribunal of another state having continuing, exclusive jurisdiction over that order under the law of that state." Utah Code Ann. § 78-45f-206(3) states that "[a] tribunal of this state which lacks continuing, exclusive jurisdiction over a spousal support order may not serve as a responding tribunal to modify a spousal support order of another state."

In the Judgment, the California court made it clear that it retained jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter. (R. 24.) Subsequent California modification orders also stated that it had the jurisdiction to enter the order. (R. 724.) Additionally, Gerald has continually resided in California since the issuance of the Judgment. (R. 599.)

Gerald initially brought the Judgment to Utah pursuant to the Utah Foreign Judgment Act solely to enforce it against Marlene. (R. 2-6, 28.) Thereafter, in the Fourth District Court, Marlene filed a petition to modify the Judgment. (R. 29-31.) Again, she did not assert any statutory authority to do so other than allege that a substantial and material change of circumstances had occurred.<sup>2</sup> (R. 30-31, 198-201, 577-580.) One of the clearest Utah cases explaining the inability of a Utah court to modify a California decree when an action is initiated to enforce such is *Bankler v. Bankler*, (Utah Ct.App.1998) 963 P.2d 797. In that case, a California decree which "specifically 'maintained jurisdiction over spousal support

---

<sup>2</sup>As set forth in the statement of facts, on June 23, 1978 when she initially filed the petition to modify, Marlene did not allege URESA. (R. 29-31.) Ditto for her January 3, 1991 second petition to modify. In fact, at that time, she did not allege that the modification action was being brought to RURES. (R. 198-201.)

. . ." (at p.798), was domesticated in Utah. Once domesticated, the husband sought to modify the same in the Utah court. The trial court "dismissed the petition to modify, holding it had 'no jurisdiction to modify the decree of divorce arising in a sister state, and the matter is best handled in the sister state.'" (*Id.*). The husband asserted "that by domesticating the California decree and all subsequent orders entered by the California court, [wife] subjected herself and the case in its entirety, to the Utah court's jurisdiction." (*Id.*) The wife argued "that notwithstanding language in the Utah Foreign Judgment Act, the Utah court lacks subject matter jurisdiction to modify a California divorce decree." She further argued "that Utah statutes confer exclusive continuing jurisdiction upon the original court" . . . and domesticating [same] does "not abrogate the California court's exclusive jurisdiction." *Id.* at pp.798-799. The Court of Appeal ruled in favor of the wife. The Court of Appeal noted the Utah Supreme Court's discussion of the *limited ability* of Utah courts to address issues decided in a foreign judgment. *Id.* at p. 799. [Emphasis added.]

The *Bankler* court declared that the Utah Supreme Court "held that neither Rule 60(b) nor our Utah Foreign Judgment Act allows our Utah courts to reopen, reexamine, or alter a foreign judgment duly filed in this state, absent a showing of fraud or the lack of jurisdiction or the lack of due process in the rendering state." Since the husband did not assert "fraud or lack of jurisdiction or due process by the California court, as required by [our Supreme Court]", he could not seek to modify and the Utah court could not modify the California decree. *Id.* at p. 800. The record is devoid of Marlene claiming that the Judgment was obtained by fraud or lack of jurisdiction or lack of due process in the rendering state.

The *Bankler* Court continued:

***Actions to modify a divorce decree should 'properly be brought in the forum which issued the decree.'*** *Angell v. Sixth Dist. Court*, 656 P.2d 405, 406-07 (Utah 1982) (per curium). In *Rimensburger v. Rimensburger*, 841 P.2d 709, 710, 711 (Utah Ct.App.1992), a wife petitioned the Third District Court in Salt Lake County for modification of a Fifth District Washington County divorce decree. On appeal, this court held that 'the court issuing the original decree retains *exclusive jurisdiction* to modify its decrees. ***Parties wishing to modify a decree must do so in the original forum.***

Although *Rimensburger* concerned subject matter jurisdiction of two Utah courts, other Utah cases have discussed the question of subject matter jurisdiction when the courts concerned are the courts of sister states. For example, in *Oglesby v. Oglesby*, 29 Utah 2d 419, 510 P.2d 1106 (Utah 1973), our supreme court addressed the question of whether a Washington state court could modify a Utah divorce decree. Although the Washington court had reduced the husband's support obligation, our supreme court held that the decree could not be considered properly 'modified' by the Washington court because the decree could only be 'changed by a duly constituted Utah court.' *Id.* 510 P.2d at 1107. ***The court noted that constitutional problems would arise if a 'responding state had the power to destroy the legitimate judgments of sister states.'***

Similarly, in *Scott v. Scott*, 19 Utah 2d 267, 430 P.2d 580 (1967), the Utah Supreme Court addressed the question of whether a Utah court could modify a Nevada divorce decree. When the wife sued to enforce the judgment in Utah, the husband counterclaimed, asserting that he had undergone such a material change of circumstances that the decree should be modified to excuse him from making future alimony payments. Our supreme court held 'the lower court was correct in its holding that it had no power or authority to change or modify the Nevada judgment.' *Id.* at 272, 430 P.2d 580. Therefore, ***Utah courts may not consider a petition to modify*** terms of a divorce decree entered by a foreign jurisdiction and domesticated in Utah for enforcement purposes. The fact that Ms. Bankler domesticated and filed all the California orders pertaining to the divorce does not change that conclusion.

## CONCLUSION

The Utah Foreign Judgment Act does not confer jurisdiction on a Utah court to prospectively modify an order issued by a foreign state court in a divorce



action, nor does it permit reopening a judgment absent allegations of fraud, lack of jurisdiction, or lack of due process. We therefore affirm the trial court's judgment." [Emphasis added.]

*Id.* at pp. 800-801.

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